
Minutes Rochester Planning Commission  

October 1, 2024 

Rochester Town Office and via Zoom 

 

Present:  Chair Dan McKinley, Sandy Haas; Julie Martin, Dave Curtis, Greg White, Christine 

Meagher, Mary Fratini, Pat Harvey (Zoning Administrator) 

 

Guests: Patrick Gendron (zoom); Deborah Gendron (zoom); Will Brokhof, Deb Moore, Lori 

Church, Ben Falk, Deb Turnbull, John Mazzuchi (zoom) 

 

Call to Order: Dan McKinley called the meeting to order at 6:30pm 

 

Patrick Gendron request to amend Bethel Mountain Road subdivision permit to reduce 

number of lots from four approved lots to three approved lots; review emergency vehicle 

access to the Gendron subdivision. 

Patrick Gendron (zoom) requested an amendment to his existing subdivision permit for 922 

Bethel Mountain Road; he would like to reduce the number of lots from four to three and have 

the emergency vehicle access letter removed. Will Brokhof was present as his proxy. Patrick is 

seeking to decrease the number of lots because he said there seemed to be some resistance to the 

density and the site seems better suited for three lots. Lots 1 and 2 will remain the same; Lots 3 

and 4 will be combined into a single lot. [Note: this is not what the surveys show. The 2024 

survey has different lot lines.] 

 

The board discussed how this reduction in lots would affect the access road. Patrick said the 

access road would go with Lot 1, but that there are covenants with each lot to cover road 

maintenance and rights-of-way that each potential buyer would receive and agree to. Patrick 

noted that he sees this request as a minimal amendment, since he was originally approved for 

more lots. Sandy Haas said that, although this is an amendment to an existing permit, the permit 

itself will have to be completely rewritten to reflect the new lots; the board had a small map 

delineating the new lots, but would need a full size survey and new descriptions for each lot, 

including the rights-of-way.  

 

Condition #5 on the original permit required each prospective purchaser be shown a copy of the 

letter from the Rochester Volunteer Fire Department dated August 24, 2022 regarding 922 

Bethel Mountain Road before any contract of sale is signed. That letter reads: 

 

The driveway is quite steep, but we can get up it in the summertime for Fire and Rescue. 

Please be aware that the bottom of the drive cannot be built up anymore or the trucks will 

drag. As for the winter months, we cannot guarantee that we will be able to get there 

safely as we are not able to run chains on our trucks. Also, we will need to have contact 



information for the company that will be maintaining the driveway so we can contact 

them at any time if the need arises. 

 

Patrick asked that this condition be removed. He said he was hoping to get approval for that 

removal from the fire chief, but that he [the fire chief] was not at the meeting tonight. Patrick 

said that the state requirements for the access road are 12’ for a single residence or 15’ for up to 

four residences, noting that the access road as currently constructed is 18’ wide. He emphasized 

that these were still raw lots, so he could rough in a driveway, but the new owners could also 

decide they want to put the driveway somewhere different. He asked for the letter to be removed 

because it scares off potential owners by making them think they won’t be able to get fire 

insurance. Patrick said that once houses are built, each lot will have its own driveway, so the 

trucks will be able to turn around there. He acknowledged that the road is steep, but said he did 

not believe this grade was steep in comparison to some existing town roads.  

 

Patrick asked what he needed to do to satisfy the fire department in order for him to be able to 

sell these lots and bring new people to town. Patrick specifically asked that the phrase “we 

cannot guarantee that we will be able to get there” be removed. He said that if winter fire service 

cannot be guaranteed at this property, then he would like to know where service is guaranteed in 

the valley and maybe he would buy property there. Patrick said he has had difficulty meeting 

with the fire chief, and that he had spoken with other fire fighters who said there would be no 

problem with dragging on the existing road. He reiterated that, once the lots are sold and 

developed, there will be three more addresses, three more driveways, and, therefore, three more 

turnouts. Patrick noted that he had logged quite extensively to get views for the lots and that the 

trucks with trailers retrieving the logs had not had any trouble.  

 

Dan said that he spoke with Fire Chief Terry Severy yesterday and that Terry said the fire 

department was not ready to remove that letter from the permit because he felt there were still 

issues with access that might put the town at some liability if they were to say that emergency 

vehicles are able to get up there. Sandy clarified that the fire department said that they will not 

issue another letter at this time. 

 

Patrick asked if other residents in the valley are or are not guaranteed service by the fire 

department. He asked when the last time was that Rochester issued such a letter. Dan noted that 

he did not think the town had done another one of these [letters], but that such a letter was 

pertinent to this site because of the steepness. Dan also noted that whether the fire department 

sends or has sent similar letters to other people was not the issue tonight. Sandy noted that 

Patrick had applied for the subdivision permit under the rules of the Town of Rochester, which 

say the planning commission needs to confirm with the fire department regarding their 

availability before deciding to issue a subdivision permit.  

 



Patrick repeated his objections to the letter: that emergency service is not guaranteed elsewhere 

in Rochester, that the access road is wide enough, that other roads are steeper, and that there will 

be more turnarounds when the development is complete. 

Mary Fratini asked if there was a process by which Patrick could appeal the decision by the fire 

department. Sandy said that the time for such an appeal was when the permit was first issued in 

2022.  

 

Dave Curtis noted that moving from four to three lots did not change anything about the situation 

in terms of the fire department access. 

 

Will Brokhof asked if someone could contact the fire department / Terry Severy to ask what, 

specifically, Patrick can do, what specific changes could be made—if anything—in order to 

resolve this problem. 

 

Sandy noted that the Selectboard approved the driveway permit (what is colloquially known as 

“the curb cut”), so that meant there will be a shared, private road for which there is a single 

access permit; Pat Harvey confirmed that there will not be more driveway permits issued to these 

lots.  

 

Patrick reiterated the following objections: the phrase “we cannot guarantee that we will be able 

to get there” should be removed; why should the decision be left up to a volunteer fire 

department; and the road is wider than required by the state. Christine Meagher noted that the 

town bylaws state that we defer to what the fire department says in regard to subdivisions. 

Patrick asked if we could consult a different fire chief. Christine reiterated that the bylaws 

specify it must be the Rochester Fire Dept.  

 

Dan concluded that the subdivision bylaws talk about the Rochester Fire Department reviewing 

the site, that the Rochester Fire Department is not comfortable removing the letter at this time, 

and that Patrick will have to work with Terry to see if there is a way to remediate their [the fire 

department’s] concerns. 

 

Will asked if someone from the planning commission could contact Terry directly to help 

identify specific criteria Patrick could meet in order to remove this condition. Greg White agreed 

that was a good idea, but noted that the criteria may well be different depending on which lot 

sells first. Will said that they have two lots under agreement waiting to close, but that they can’t 

move forward with those until this is resolved. Greg said that they [Will and Patrick] should 

identify those two lots when asking Terry what could be done to remediate his concerns. Patrick 

emphasized that he would like to represent himself in that conversation and that the fire chief 

was not an engineer. 

 



Pat Harvey asked if anyone had explored putting in a fire hydrant for the four lots, if that would 

suffice for the fire department. Patrick said that was unnecessary because the lots are only two 

miles from town.  

Christine said that, whether the fire chief is or is not an engineer, the fire department volunteers 

will the ones driving the trucks, so it is important that those people—who are licensed and 

volunteering to drive the trucks—are able to do so safely. 

 

Mary asked if the board had served in this mediator role before and if so, who would do it. Dan 

said that yes, the board had done this before and that he would be willing to do so in this 

instance. Dan said that he was willing to visit the site with Terry and Will (and/or Patrick) to get 

Terry’s thoughts, but that was all the board could offer tonight in terms of negotiating that 

condition. He said that if Patrick wanted to take that route, the board could put his request for 

amendment on hold or make a motion to approve the three lots with the existing conditions 

tonight.  

 

Deborah Gendron (zoom) asked that if they do show the letter to prospective buyers and then the 

letter changes, will they have to wait for another zoning meeting in order to change those 

requirements. Dan and Sandy agreed that was true; that this condition could only be overcome by 

another letter in writing.  

 

Sandy made a motion to amend the permit for subdivision from four lots to three; Lot 1 will be 

approximate 5.8 acres; Lot 2 will be approximately 7.7 acres; Lot 3 will be approximately 17.9 

acres. Lot 1 shall have a deeded right-of-way over Lot 3 for access from Bethel Mountain Road; 

Lot 2 shall have a deeded right-of-way over Lots 1 and 3 for access from Bethel Mountain Road;  

Lot 3 shall have a deeded right-of-way over Lot 1 from Bethel Mountain Road. The permit will 

keep the existing condition that each purchaser of any or all lots must be shown a copy of the fire 

department letter, dated August 24, 2022, before a contract of sale is signed. A full-size copy of 

the survey must be submitted/on file before the permit can be amended. 

 

Mary seconded the motion. The board voted unanimously in favor of the motion to amend this 

permit.  

  

Nancy Woolley asked whether, in cases like this where an existing subdivision permit is 

substantially changed, abutters need to be re-notified. Sandy said that, in this case, the board did 

not feel that abutters needed to be notified,  since the permit was issued for four lots and this is a 

request to reduce to three lots. 

 

Deb Turnbull, subdivision inquiry at 881 Brook Street. 

Deb Turnbull asked about the type of permit/process for getting the permit to subdivide her 

property at 881 Brook Street. The existing parcel is 64.3 acres with land on both sides of the 



street. After the proposed subdivision, Lot 1 will be approximately 60.8 acres, with land on both 

sides of the street; Lot 2 will be approximately 3.5 acres, include the existing house, and have 

significant frontage on Brook Steet. Deb explained that Lot 1 basically encircles Lot 2 with 

Brook Street in the middle.  

 

Sandy said that this will require a subdivision permit, which also requires a warned hearing. She 

said that if Deb could get all the application materials in by October 11, 2024 then we could 

warn this for the November meeting.  

 

Approval of Minutes: Minutes from September meeting approved. 

 

Administrative Officer Report, Building and Zoning Applications 

-- Greg White, 362 Maple Hill Road.  

This application is to rebuild a shed because a tree fell on the old one. The permit was approved. 

 

-- Earl Kingsbury, 3258 North Hollow Road 

Earl will be enclosing the lower section of an existing deck to protect items from the weather. 

This permit was approved.  

 

-- Pierce Hall, 38 South Main Street 

Pierce Hall will be constructing covers for their heat pumps. This permit was approved. 

 

-- Cody Bowen, 189 State Garage Road 

Cody is seeking a permit to build a sugarhouse on State Garage Road. Pat has some questions to 

follow-up on about water access. This permit is pending. 

 

-- Louis Cocci, Route 100 

Louis is building an addition onto an existing dwelling, but not in the same footprint as the 

original house before it burned. Pat will visit with him for clarification, since the lot is only 0.8 

acres, to ensure all setbacks are in place. This permit is pending. 

 

◼ Timothy Wildey and Mason Wade, Bingo Road 

This is an attempt to clarify a boundary between the Wildey and Wade properties on Bingo 

Road. John Mazzuchi, the attorney for the Wildeys, attended via zoom. John noted the 

significant ambiguity in the deeds to both properties regarding the shared boundary line. He said 

that Wildeys and Wades have agreed on a logical location for the line—at the top of the bank of 

the ravine—which is necessary because right now, neither could likely sell their property without 

clarification of this line. John asked what, if any, type of permit this situation required from the 

town. He said that he had reached out to the state and confirmed that they do not need a 

wastewater permit for this situation. 

 



After discussion, the board agreed that this is neither a lot line adjustment nor a subdivision, and 

since the parties are in agreement, they could just draw a boundary map  and deeds and file them 

with the town without need for a permit. Pat noted that the adjustment should also be made clear 

to the listers so that the tax bills can be adjusted.  

 

Public comment (limited to 3 minutes) 

 

Lori Church, Ben Falk, and Deb Moore spoke about the possible proposal for a cell tower 

at 1030 Route 100 South. 

 

Lori said that the Town Plan contained provisions that would specifically prohibit this proposed 

development, including but not limited to: items 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7 on pages 16-17. She said the town 

should think about possible proposal in terms of “three u’s”, calling it unnecessary, ugly, and 

unhealthy. She said it was unnecessary because Rochester has sufficient telecommunications 

services now with AT&T in the church steeple, and landlines and/or internet from multiple 

providers, including ECFiber. She said that cell towers are ugly and this proposed location would 

be visible from everywhere, which she said would violate the Town Plan in several sections 

including, but not limited to, pages 63-64. She said that cell towers are unhealthy; she 

acknowledged that the FCC does not support this. Lori further said that the Town Plan allows the 

board to consider other elements such as flood remediation and impervious surfaces.  

 

Referencing multiple elements in Vermont Statute 248A, Lori argued that the Town Plan 

provides ample grounds for the Public Utility Commission [PUC] to reject this proposal out of 

the required “substantial deference to municipal and regional planning commissions.” She said 

she believes that all the town has to do is say it doesn’t like the tower and it will be gone. She 

said this tower would serve Verizon’s good, not the public good; that the town plan could kill the 

possible proposal; and asked that the town do so.   

 

Dan said that he had followed up with Francis Parisi from Vertex after last month’s meeting and 

reported the following: 

• Vertex intends to file their formal application in mid-October. 

• Vertex will do another visibility/balloon test soon after filing. 

• They will tell the town as much in advance as is possible, with the understanding that 

they also the need to find an appropriate weather window for the test. 

• Their photographers can take pictures from any public areas that we suggest (or as 

reasonably close as they can get), but they cannot go on private land. 

• Once Vertex files their formal application with the PUC, the PUC will send the 

application to the town, abutters, and appropriate state agencies.  

• When the PUC has declared the application to be complete, the comment deadline will 

begin. The comment period lasts 30 days from the issuance of notice of complete 

petition. 

 



Lori noted that the town can respond to the proposal now, it does not have to wait for the notice 

of complete petition. She said the town could address the letter to Vertex and put it on file with 

the PUC, then it can be re-uploaded to the PUC once the petition is complete. She offered to help 

draft such a letter and pay for any additional notifications.  

 

Ben returned to the Town Plan, agreeing with Lori that the document provides sufficient grounds 

for arguing that the proposal would violate it in several ways. He specifically noted the sections 

discussing flood resilience, scenic corridors, significant sites to the town, and watershed 

management/flood resilience. He said the proposal would develop/redevelop a road spanning 

1000’ from the valley floor, which would be used every week for maintenance, even during the 

winter and mud seasons. He asked when the town would decide to stand by the Town Plan so 

that we [people in the town] can keep track of that.  

 

Deb Moore asked what is the purpose of having a Town Plan if something violates it and we [the 

town] just let it go. She asked why have a town plan if we are not going to follow it.  

 

Ben and Lori reiterated their position that the PUC is bound by “substantial deference to 

municipal and regional planning commissions”, so the town plan would prohibit the tower. 

 

Dan noted that he did not see the issue as that clear cut. For example, he said, if we are talking 

about flood resilience, what is the percent of imperious surface by which we will increase? What 

soil stabilization methods they will use for that road? What kind of drainage? Where will it 

drain? He noted that, just because you have more water, it doesn’t necessarily mean you are 

making the town less flood resilient. Or, in the case of wildlife impingement, there are questions 

like, is it even a deer yard? He noted that just because an issue is referenced in the town plan 

doesn’t automatically mean any specific project is violating the Town Plan. He reiterated that he 

was, in this instance, speaking for himself and not for the board as a whole. 

 

Greg said that the PUC has to provide substantial deference, but noted that there are also many 

other conditions in the 248 process that the PUC has to consider. He noted that in his previous 

experiences with the 248 process, the PUC takes a full view of all criteria in determining the 

public good; sometimes the town plan is deferred to and sometimes it is not.  

 

The board discussed the different roles available to the town versus individuals, who/how would 

speak for the town, the window for responding to the completed petition, and the best way to get 

more information to and from the people of Rochester about the 248 process/this possible 

project. The board agreed to hold an additional information session for the town that will include 

the planning commission and the selectboard, but separate from either group’s regularly 

scheduled meetings. The meeting will be scheduled for Thursday, October 24, 2024 from 6-8pm 

at the Rochester High School Auditorium.  



Patrick Gendron 

Patrick registered his disappointment that, although his request to amend the subdivision permit 

and remove the condition were on the warned agenda for this evening, the fire chief did not take 

the time to come to the meeting so that they [he and Patrick] could speak personally. He 

reiterated that he had had difficulty getting in touch with Terry and that he was disappointed 

Terry did not attend tonight. 

 

Adjourned: Meeting was adjourned at 8:29pm. 

 

Next meeting: Wednesday, November 6, 2024 at 6:30 pm 

 


